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1 TUESDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2019; SAN PEDRO, CALIFORNIA

2

3 THE SECRETARY: Thank you. Our next item, number 2, I

4 will note for the record that there is transcribing taking

5 place. Speakers, I ask that you speak state your name into

6 the microphone.

7 Item number 2 is a resolution for final supplemental

8 environmental impact report for Berths 97 through 109, China

9 Shipping Container Terminal Project, A.P.P. number 150224-504,

10 SCH number 2003061153, and at the podium is Gene Siroka.

11 Gene Siroka, Executive Director, Port ofDIR. SIROKA:

12 Los Angeles.

13 Madam President, with your permission, I'll read a

14 memo into the record before I introduce Chris Cannon, our

15 Director of Environmental Management.

16 PRES. LEE: Please.

17 DIR. SIROKA: When I became executive director at the Port

18 of Los Angeles, staff brought to my attention the languishing

19 compliance of the 2008 China Shipping Expansion Environmental

20 Impact Report and associated mitigation measures. China

21 Shipping, whose successor company COSCO is now the

22 third-largest shipping line in the world, continues to work

with the Port of Los Angeles.23

24 In the spirit of transparency, I immediately brought

this issue to the public, acknowledging the process to rebuild25
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1 trust must start with full disclosure of these circumstances.

2 With the focus on remaining solutions-oriented, I also

3 immediately directed staff to begin the Supplemental

Environmental Impact Report to bring about legal compliance to4

5 ensure that we fulfill our obligations to the Berth 97 through

109 container terminal under the California Environmental6

7 Quality Act.

8 In 2015, we began dialogue with key stakeholders in

9 this process, including the Natural Resources Defense Council

10 and its clients, to inform the steps that will be taken to put

11 us back on track.

12 After several years of required reassessment of the

13 feasibility and necessity for each of these measures that were

14 not implemented, including responses to many important

15 comments from the public, we are now ready to present the

final supplemental environmental impact report to you, the16

17 Board of Harbor Commissioners, for consideration today.

Certification of this final supplemental18

19 environmental impact report is essential for maintaining the

operation that was responsible for 17 percent of our nearly20

21 9.7 million twenty-foot equivalent units that were processed

22 in the fiscal year ending June 30th, 2019, and the associated

jobs while implementing crucial environmental improvements.23

24 If we are unable to move forward today, this facility

25 will remain out of compliance with respect to CEQA, with the
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1 closure of the Terminal a real possibility as mentioned in

2 writing by the N.R.D.C. Not only would this prolong an

3 already lengthy bureaucratic process, but it could result in

4 more than 800 jobs being displaced and delay implementation of

additional mitigation measures.5

6 Job loss and the sustained air pollution are

7 unacceptable outcomes, especially when we have a path to usher

in the cleanest conventionally operated port terminal in

9 San Pedro Bay.

10 As executive director, I believe staff and I have

demonstrated through the indoctrination of the updated Clean11

12 Air Action Plan, that the entire organization represents to

13 reassert and reaffirm our commitment to transparency,

14 integrity, and results. I look forward to working with you

15 and all stakeholders toward delivering the environmental and

16 economic outcomes that we all seek. Thank you.

17 May I now introduce Chris Cannon, our Director of

Environmental Management.18

19 Good morning, commissioners.MR. CANNON: Chris Cannon,

20 Environmental Management Division. I'm here this morning to

21 present to you for your consideration the final supplemental

22 environmental impact report for the Berths 97 through 109

23 Container Terminal.

2 4 This is the project location, just north of SR47 and

25 the Vincent Thomas Bridge. The berths 97 through 109 terminal
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is operated by West Basin Container Terminal,1 which is a joint

2 venture between COSCO/China Shipping, YangMing, and SSA

3 Marine. Permit 999 is with the China Shipping/North American

4 Holding Company organization, which runs until 2030 with three

five-year options to extend through 2045.5

6 The 2008 China Shipping E.I.S./E.I.R. was certified

7 by the board. It imposed 52 mitigation and three lease

42 out of the 52 mitigation measures and two leasemeasures.

9 measures have been completed or are in progress.

10 Ten mitigation measures and one lease measure have

11 not been fully implemented. Six of the mitigation measures

12 involved air quality, four mitigation measures were

13 transportation, and one is a throughput-tracking lease

14 measure.

15 The supplemental E.I.R. reevaluates revisions to the

16 ten mitigation measures plus the one lease measure based on

17 feasibility, availability of alternative technologies and

18 need, and proposed revisions to mitigation lease measures

19 together constitute the S.E.I.R.'s revised project.

20 New measures for air quality and greenhouse gases

21 were also analyzed as part of the revised projects, and the

22 impacts of the revised projects were then reassessed in the

23 S.E.I.R.

24 There was a Notice of Preparation issued originally

25 for the S.E.I.R. in September of 2015. At a scoping meeting
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in October of 2015, a draft supplemental E.I.R. was released1

2 for public review in June of 2017, with a public hearing in

3 July of that year. A recirculated draft supplemental E.I.R.

4 was released based on comments received in the first

5 supplemental. That was released in September of 2018, public

6 hearing in October of that year, and now the final

7 supplemental E.I.R. was released to the public in September,

8 on September 5th of 2019, and today we are here for a board

9 certification hearing.

10 So the next three slides show the proposed changes to

mitigation and lease measures for the revised project compared11

12 to what was approved in the original E.I.R. These are

intended to be summaries only,13 and you should consult the

14 actual language of each of these measures to assure you have

15 all the details.

16 Also note that in cases involving proposed equipment,

17 just because someone can make a piece of equipment doesn't

make it feasible.18 In the CEQA world, there must be

19 substantial evidence in the record that a proposed measure

20 meets CEQA's definition of feasibility, including technical,

21 economic, and operational considerations.

22 Port staff has assessed these measures and as

23 experts and had experts evaluate them for feasibility and

24 their ability to reduce impacts, and each of the equipment

25 categories was looked at and evaluated.
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1 So starting at the top, MM AQ-9 was 100 percent shore

2 power.

3 is a term that we use here at theBy the way, "AMP

4 Alternative Marine Power.port It's also known as shore

5 power around the world.

6 It was 100 percent shore power for China Shipping

7 vessels. It is now proposed to be 95 percent for all vessels.

This increases the vessels that the measure applies to, and it8

9 moves the compliance requirement to a feasible and more

10 realistic 95 percent without substantial change to project

impacts.11

12 MM AQ-10 was originally 100 percent vessel-speed

reduction out to 40 nautical miles for all ships.13 It is now

14 proposed to be a feasible and more realistic 95 percent

15 compliance requirement, again without substantial change to

16 project impacts.

17 MM AQ-15 originally required all fuel yard-tractors

meeting Tier 4 Final emissions requirement, and this has now18

19 been changed to a more stringent NOx requirement of .02 grams

20 per brake-horsepower hour while still meeting Tier 4 Final for

21 other pollutants.

22 MM AQ-16 was originally designed to establish

equipment for23 or requirements for equipment use at the rail

24 It is now combined with MM AQ-17 because all of theyard.

equipment is used throughout the entire terminal.25
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1 We went through each of these categories of equipment

2 and evaluated each of them to determine which what was

feasible.3 It was originally Tier 4 Final for yard equipment,

4 diesel or alt-fuel, electric RTGs at the terminal plus an

electric yard-tractor demonstration.5 It's now been proposed

to be Tier 4 Final for 18-ton forklifts and top-picks;6

electric for 5-ton forklifts; for alt7 for sweepers, it

would be alt-fuel; for shuttle buses, zero emissions.

9 For rubber-tire gantry cranes, there's two it ’ s

divided in two.10 In the back surcharge area, it would be

electric, and in the area more closer to the wharf,11

12 diesel-electric hybrid RTGs.

13 And then we have a demonstration project to replace

14 the yard-tractor demonstration. I'll get to that in a moment.

15 it was originally a requirement of aFor MM AQ-20,

16 dedicated fleet of LNG trucks serving the terminal. This was

17 removed as infeasible. There is a full discussion of the

feasibility considerations for this measure in the document.18

19 But the key considerations are, first, the terminal doesn't

20 have contracts for drayage with trucking companies, and so it

21 would be operationally unworkable to implement such a measure.

22 it would also be a challenge for a terminalSecond,

to restrict access to non-LNG trucks that are otherwise23

24 eligible to conduct drayage at other port terminals and

elsewhere in the state.25
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And, third, the port believes it is appropriate to1

2 implement incentive programs for clean drayage trucks on a

port-wide basis,3 such as our very successful Clean Trucks

4 Program with a potential for more widespread benefit and

cost-effectiveness for such investments.5

LM AQ-23 is a lease measure, or was a lease6

— is now proposed to be superseded by a new lease7 measure

measure that requires the terminal to confirm with the port

9 that it is always purchasing the cleanest available

10 technology.

11 MM Trans-2, 3, 4, and 6 are all modifications to

12 intersections and roadways based on identified impacts. Two

13 of those measures, MM Trans-4 and 6, are recommended for

14 removal either because the traffic no longer exists due to

other improvements in the area or because,15 in the case of

16 MM Trans-6, it's superseded by a separate transportation

17 project. MM Trans-2 and 3 will be modified with their

scheduled modification but will ultimately be implemented.18

19 LM AQ-1 is a new lease measure. It's the one I

20 referred to a moment ago. It's the cleanest available

21 cargo-handling equipment. The tenant must replace the

22 cargo-handling equipment with the cleanest available equipment

anytime new or replacement equipment is purchased,23 with a

2 4 first preference for zero-emissions equipment, a second

25 preference for near-zero, and then the cleanest available if

11
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1 zero or near-zero emission is not feasible.

2 I should point out that the equipment referred to in

the previous slide in each of these MM AQ-173 all of that

equipment would be phased in over a five-year period.4 One of

5 the things that actually we thought about in designing this

6 lease measure is that because the equipment would be phased in

7 over five years, there actually is an opportunity for newer,

8 cleaner equipment to become available, and if it is, then that

9 would take precedence over what's listed in the mitigation

10 measure.

11 So that five-year period to combine with this measure

12 actually allows for the potential for even the

13 cleanest-available equipment to be implemented as soon as

14 possible.

15 LM AQ-2 is a priority access for drayage. A priority

16 access system is to be implemented for zero and near-zero

17 emissions equipment.

18 LM AQ-3 is the demonstration project I referred to.

19 There would be ten units of zero-emission cargo-handling

20 demonstrated at the terminal.

21 MM GHG-1 is a new mitigation measure requiring all

22 lighting within the interior and outdoors at the terminal to

23 be LED.

24 And LM GHG-1 is a lease measure, and it requires that

25 the tenant has to make a payment of $2 million into a
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1 greenhouse gas fund established by the L.A.H.D. to fund

2 projects to reduce greenhouse gas at the port. Payments would

be made eight payments, $250,000 a year, starting at the3

beginning of the project.4 And these would this fund would

5 be established in the same structure and in accordance with

6 programs for greenhouse gas credits established by the

7 California Air Resources Board.

8 So these are now the impact findings. The

9 Oh, excuse me. I had - I flipped ahead.

10 The peak air quality peak emissions for air

quality — we have significant impacts for carbon monoxide,11

12 and NOx in multiple years.VOC, For pollutant concentrations,

13 we have — we exceed AQMD thresholds for Federal and State and

14 annual N02 and also PM10 and Annual PM10. We exceed the

15 greenhouse gas standard established by the AQMD, and that's

16 why the lease measure that are referred to pay $2,000,000 has

17 been established.

18 The maximum residential cancer risk receptor has been

19 identified at 25 in a million. This compares to the maximum

residential cancer risk receptor of 11 in a million for the20

21 original document.

22 We've actually prepared a slide to give additional

23 focus on the maximum residential cancer risk receptor

24 This is a zoom-in on Figure B-3, dash, 5 of theassessment.

25 The yellow line that is shown there is where theS.E.I.R.
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1 assessment predicts a cancer risk of 10 in a million. To the

2 left of the line is below 10 in a million. To the right of

the line is above 10 in a million.3 The area shown here is the

4 only area where the cancer-risk assessment predicts a

residential cancer risk to exceed 10 in a million.5

6 The maximum receptor is where the triangle there is

7 shown, and there is also an area at the tip of the structure

that is just at the intersection of Harbor Boulevard and the8

9 110 exit ramp there. There is an apartment building, and

10 right at the tip there, it's 22 in a million. The only other

residential receptors that are affected are along Palos Verdes11

12 Street there, and they're just barely over 10 in a million.

13 The ground transportation is significant and

14 unavoidable, but not because of the lack of ability of the

mitigation measures I identified to be implemented.15 If they

are implemented, the impacts would not be significant.16 We had

to identify them as significant and unavoidable because they17

require approval and implementation by another agency, and we18

19 can't promise something like that. So it is appropriate for

us to identify that as significant, but we anticipate that20

21 that will be taken care of.

22 There were cumulative impacts for greenhouse gas, air

quality, and traffic when combined with other projects in the23

24 And there's a cumulatively considerable traffic impactarea.

25 at John S. Gibson Boulevard and the 110 northbound ramps.
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1 There were nine comment letters received that are

2 that were for the recirculated draft S.E.I.R. you can see

3 them listed there and one verbal comment received at a

4 public hearing. We've also received six comments in advance

5 of this board meeting to consider the Final S.E.I.R. You have

6 been given copies of those letters. And port staff has

7 prepared specific responses to the N.R.D.C. and AQMD letters,

and those responses have been submitted to the board in

9 advance, and they're available to the public upon request.

10 So our recommendations, finally, are to certify the

11 adopt the findings and a statement of overridingS.E.I.R.,

12 considerations, adopt supplemental mitigation monitoring and

13 reporting program, and approve the revised project.

14 The mitigation measures and lease measures are

15 typically implemented through lease provisions with tenants.

16 As a subsequent discretionary action, the board will use this

17 final S.E.I.R. in deciding whether to approve and implement

the revised project.18 Mitigation and lease measures in the

19 permit will be monitored by the port and — using compliance

20 tracking systems, and periodic reports will be provided to the

21 board on compliance status.

22 Before I complete, we did we do have some errata,

23 minor changes that were made to the environmental document.

24 Your board report is accurate and reflects those errata, but I

25 do want to submit them for the record. They are very minor
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SNYDER HEATHCOTE, INC. (213) 388-2151



1 changes.

2 Do I submit them?

3 Here. Thank you.

4 That concludes my presentation.

5 In conclusion of the staff presentation,DIR. SIROKA:

6 the N.R.D.C. has claimed that the supplemental environmental

7 impact report's determination that the 2008 mitigation

measures were economically infeasible is not supported by

9 evidence.

10 To the contrary, the final supplemental environmental

impact report provides substantial evidence supporting the11

12 determinations within the S.E.I.R. This evidence includes a

13 detailed assessment of the cost of terminal equipment,

14 evaluation of the operational constraints of the terminal, and

15 a determination by port staff which has specific expertise

16 regarding terminal operations, operating costs, and the

17 shipping industry.

18 Based on more than three decides of experience both

19 here domestically and internationally in the shipping

20 industry, I concur. The S.E.I.R.'s conclusions that the

21 terminal equipment measures in the 2008 environmental impact

22 report have been modified in the supplemental environmental

23 impact report because they were cost prohibitive and would

24 prevent the terminal from operating competitively with respect

25 to other ongoing business concerns in the region.
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1 Thank you.PRES. LEE: We'll now move on to our public

2 comment cards, starting with David Pettit.

3 MR. PETTIT: I'm fighting bronchitis.Excuse me.

4 Good morning, commissioners, Madam Chair. I'm David

5 Pettit from the N.R.D.C. I was here talking to you a couple

6 of weeks ago and mentioned that four years ago I had gotten a

7 call from the mayor, from Mayor Garcetti, saying he called

8 me up and said, If You know, Dave, we're having a problem with

9 the port. Would you guys work with us?"

10 And I said, If And what I told you last time IYes .

11 was here was we'll see today whether I made a mistake in

12 saying that or not.

13 Having read the supplemental E.I.R. and listened to

14 the remarks this morning, I now think yes, I did make a

mistake, and I should have hauled the court15 should have

16 hauled the port into court four years ago. What we've seen is

17 four years of stalling and moving backwards.

18 I think what Mr. Siroka's last statement really

19 crystalizes why we're here. He said that in our view, the

20 N.R.D.C.'s view, would prevent the terminal from competing

21 from competing fully in the marketplace.

22 Thank you very much.

23 And it's that value, the economic position of the

24 port, that I think is juxtaposed with the public health and

25 environmental issues that my organization is here to support.
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1 So I would like to — I have a couple of technical

2 comments to make. I would like to talk about the regional

3 effect and the local effect, what will happen if your board

4 approves staff recommendation this morning.

5 First off, I was handed in the audience two response

6 letters from the port and a letter from COSCO, which I guess

is now China Shipping.7 I've only had a chance to skim those,

8 and so I don't have anything to say today. But I do want to

9 reserve the right to comment on those if — and it's probably

10 If the board approves the staff recommendationno secret.

11 today, there will be an appeal to the city council by us and

12 our clients. And I would like to reserve the right to have

13 additional comments in that proceeding to the documents I

14 received today.

15 Secondly, another thing that just recently happened

16 is the Trump Administration has revoked, or purported to

17 revoke, California's right to set its own tailpipe emissions

18 for GHGs.

19 That has a somewhat obscure but real effect on this

20 proceeding, which is that the port and every agency in

21 California uses the same model a CARB-approved model — to

22 compute the air quality effects of transportation. That's

23 called EMFAC, E-M-F-A-C. And the EMFAC model assumes that the

24 California zero-emission laws are in effect. As of today,

25 they're not in effect.
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1 So the EMFAC model is inaccurate, and the fact that

2 it assumes something that's no longer the case means that all

of the air-quality assumptions from transportation that3 are in

this E.I.R. — basically, every other E.I.R. now in4

California5 are too low because of what the Feds have done.

6 And I should say the State of California has filed

7 suit, and other NGOs have filed suit to try toN.R.D.C.

overturn that Federal decision, which I think is blatantly

illegal, but I don't know how it's going to come out.9

10 But as of right now today, as I stand here and

this will probably be true when I speak to the city council in11

12 the next couple of months the S.E.I.R. underreports the air

13 emissions associated with this project.

14 I'd like to talk for a moment now about the regional

15 effect of approval of the project, first with respect to GHGs.

16 In my view, this is the biggest environmental problem we have

in the world today.17 I have — on a personal note, I have

grandchildren now.18 This is personal to me. This affects the

19 life they're going to have. What kind of world are these

little kids going to live in?20

21 Mr. Cannon's chart showed you and the S.E.I.R. says,

22 I think fairly explicitly, if this project is approved, GHGs

will go up, not down.23 That's exactly wrong. We can't have

24 that. It's inconsistent with California law and policy, it's

25 morally wrong, and your board should not allow that to happen
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1 when there are alternatives for this project that would make

2 GHGs go down and not up. And we describe those in our comment

3 letters.

4 Secondly, Mr. Cannon's - the chart that he showed

5 you and in the S.E.I.R. shows that various other emissions

will go up, not down, the most important of which — and this6

7 is also bought out in the air district's letter - is oxides

of nitrogen, NOx. Those will go up, not down, if this project

9 is approved.

10 The reason that's important is that NOx — these

11 The district,emissions are precursors to ozone. as you may

12 know, is in severe non-attainment for ozone as a 2023 date

13 where they have to meet a Federal number. In my opinion,

14 there's no way that they're going to meet that —

15 THE SECRETARY: Thank you for your time, sir.

16 MR. PETTIT: Thanks.

17 I actually have five minutes.

18 MS. SIDLEY: We gave you five, but keep going.

19 MR. PETTIT: That was five? Wow. Sorry.

20 We agreed to it.MS. SIDLEY:

21 MR. PETTIT: We did. Okay. Well, I'm sorry. All right.

22 I'll be very brief.

23 Anyhow, you really don't want to contribute to the

2 4 kind of sanctions on Southern California that the Trump

25 Administration recently threatened. I don't think they can do

20
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1 that now, but if the air district is in non-attainment in

2 2023, the economy of Southern California is going to go into

the toilet.3

4 Let me just skip to the — what may happen regionally

5 and particularly with the port. In 2004 the port and N.R.D.C.

6 and our clients entered into a settlement agreement with

7 respect to litigation that we had filed on this matter.

8 Part of that settlement agreement, Article 11, has an

9 account provision that kicks in if there is litigationescrow

10 over this project, the China Shipping project, and that

requires a $30.00 per TEU payment into an escrow account for11

12 everything over 328,000 TEUs per calendar year.

13 So if you use the data that was in Mr. Siroka's

14 presentation to you, we're talking about roughly $39 million a

15 year from port revenue paid into an escrow account that the

16 port can't touch until the litigation is over, which could

17 take two or three years. So that could easily be $100 million

in the escrow account which, if we prevail in the litigation,18

19 goes to community benefits, would not be available to the

20 port.

21 We will also ask — if there's litigation, as

22 Mr. Siroka mentioned, we will ask that the terminal be shut

down until CEQA compliance is finally achieved.23

24 We've waited four years to try to resolve this. It

25 hasn't been resolved, and it looks like now we're going to

21
(213) 388-2151SNYDER HEATHCOTE, INC.



1 have to go to the mat on this. It's too bad that that had to

2 happen, but it did, and that's where I think this is going to

3 go.

4 So I urge you to reject staff recommendations and to

direct staff to come to the table with us and our clients.5

6 Let's redo this agreement in a way where the project can go

7 forward and we can all live together. Thank you. Thank you

8 for the additional time.

9 MS. SIDLEY: You bet.

10 Thank you.PRES. LEE: I will now be calling up three

11 speakers at a time. Jillian Wong, Joe Lyou, David Serrato.

12 MS. WONG: Good morning, commissioners. My name is

13 Jillian Wong, and I'm with the South Coast Air Quality

14 Management District.

15 Taking us back to the 2008 E.I.R., where they found

16 that the project emissions were significant, what you didn't

17 see today was the extent of those significant impacts. For

18 example, back in 2008, NOx project emissions was 7,500 pounds

19 per day. That's 135 times the CEQA threshold.

20 For localized impacts, we're looking at six times the

ambient air quality standard from one project alone.21 So

22 South Coast AQMD staff is concerned that despite the magnitude

23 of these impacts, the port is allowing the project to move

24 forward with an increase in its cargo throughput while

25 removing and weakening instead of adding and strengthening

22
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1 existing air quality mitigation measures.

2 The port is responsible for achieving the emissions

reductions previously committed to, even if the tenant won't3

4 comply. We have provided an example of how the port might be

5 able to get those emission reductions in our comment letter

6 through a mitigation fee fund which is separate from the GHG

7 fund that you have before you.

8 We recommend that you delay approval of this project,

9 implement and enforce the mitigation measures that were

10 previously approved by the board, and consider additional

mitigation measures to reduce the project's impacts to the11

12 surrounding, burdened AB617 community. Thank you.

13 Good morning, Madam President, commissioners.MR. LYOU:

14 Joe Lyou, Coalition for Clean Air. Thank you for having me

15 here today. I wish it was under better circumstances.

16 I'll just start out by saying that I incorporate by

17 reference all the comments by my counsel, David Pettit,

18 N.R.D.C.

19 And I can tell, you know, I think we need to put this

in a little bit of historic context20

21 Sir, sir.THE REPORTER: You need to slow down.

22 MR. LYOU: Oh, the translation? I'm so sorry.

23 I will slow down, but I'm only given three minutes;

24 so I'm trying to do it as quickly as I can.

25 Maybe a little leeway, but to help theMS. SIDLEY:
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1 reporter

2 I appreciate that, Janna.MR. LYOU:

3 With regard to the history of this, you have to

realize how important,4 symbolically and environmentally and

5 public health standpoint, that this terminal is to what

6 happened, not only here at the port of Los Angeles but also at

7 the port of Long Beach. This was a dividing line between an

8 ever-expanding port complex that was not paying attention to

9 the environmental impacts and the public health impacts on the

10 local community and one that did and started to.

11 And all that has come forward was based on the fact

12 that this China Shipping lawsuit required this environmental

impact report and those mitigation measures.13

14 What's happening now I think is an insult to the

15 legacy of China Shipping, and we don't want this to be the

16 point in which we are going down the road of backtracking.

17 This may seem like a good, reasonable, safe decision

18 for you today, but as David Pettit was saying, it's not. This

19 is a very risky decision for you because it's not doing

20 everything that can feasibly happen in order to mitigate the

21 air quality and public health impacts.

22 You also have a legal agreement with our

23 organization, Coalition for Clean Air; N.R.D.C.; and local

24 residents, residents organizations, in which we have an

25 amended stipulated judgment. That legal agreement can't be
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unilaterally renegotiated by this port.1 You have to work with

2 us on figuring out where we go from here in order to address

3 the problems.

4 And I admit, you know, maybe some of these things may

5 not be feasible. We need to actually sit down and deliver a

6 negotiated agreement to this, because other than that, it's

going to get messy, it's going to get ugly, and we don't want7

the port to shut down the China Shipping terminal. That's not

9 the option that we're looking to do.

10 I think at this point, as commissioners, you're going

11 to have to step up. You're going to have to actually come in

12 and negotiate with the plaintiffs, as commissioners, because

13 we got nowhere with staff working on this issue for the last

14 four years.

15 Thank you for considering my comments.

16 David Serrato.PRES. LEE:

17 MR. SERRATO: Hello. Good morning. Congratulations to

18 Hello.you two.

19 Just a very short thing. I just want to say I'm in

20 support of the supplemental E.I.R. We want to protect jobs,

21 good-paying jobs, in Wilmington, San Pedro, and the Harbor

22 area.

23 And as that Yang was saying, automation is really

24 going to devastate this country. So we've got to be careful

25 there. Let's try and go and work together. I can see the
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1 port, Gene here we're trying to work together to clean up

2 the air for years.

3 Like you said, you got Eric Garcetti here with

$9.8 million for clean top-handlers, electric charging4

5 stations. We need to keep up that work, and I thank you guys

6 for doing that. That's all I want to say. Thank you.

7 PRES. LEE: Thank you.

8 Sal DiCostanzo, Thomas Jelenic, Rich Siverson.

9 MR. DI COSTANZO: Good morning, commissioners, port staff.

10 Thank you for this opportunity.

11 I started as a casual longshoreman in 1998.

12 MS. SIDLEY: Can you please just state your name.

13 Sal DiCostanzo, I.L.W. Local 13.MR. DI COSTANZO:

14 MS. SIDLEY: Thank you.

15 Thank You.MR. DI COSTANZO:

16 at that time I worked part time while IAt any rate,

17 was working in finance and marketing and also later on as a

18 teacher. And recently, in the last 13 years which is

19 recent for some of us — I've been a full-time longshoreman.

20 In that time, I've seen many changes, and most of them are for

21 the better.

22 Real change doesn't happen overnight. Movements take

time, the labor movement for one; the civil rights movement,23

24 another. No one decision changes the course of history. Real

25 change happens over time, and that is going to be true here as
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1 well. Environmental change is necessary; however, it

2 shouldn't come at the cost of this community over other

communities.3

4 The ports of L.A. and Long Beach do a tremendous job

5 of balancing all the different members in the supply chains --

6 the end consumer who wants these goods to be imported; the

7 shippers who contract with the carriers to bring the goods in;

8 the railroads who supply the center of the country; the

9 competing ports around the rest of the country as well. We ' re

10 all in this together. It's a closed loop.

On the environment too11 the Clean Air Action Plan

12 has done a lot of good. Is it perfect? No. Is it something

13 that we need to keep improving? Absolutely.

14 But we support the supplemental E.I.R. if it is a

15 step in the right direction. We want the two sides to come

16 together and, in fact, all of the sides to come together to

17 up to a conclusion that benefits everyone.come

18 Let's not forget the ports have to be profitable.

19 They have to generate a profit to exist. If they don't, how

20 are they going to secure the funding to implement the

21 structures and the hardware and the infrastructure that's

22 necessary to reach the goals of employment and a clean

environment?23

24 So let's -- please, let's not throw the baby out with

25 the bath water. Let's work together to have an agreement that
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1 we can all stand by and that we can all move forward with.

2 In closing, I would just like to say that San Pedro

3 Bay ports are already some of the cleanest in the world, if

4 not the cleanest, and we lead by example. Everyone is looking

5 Houston, Charlotte, New York-New Jersey.at us We cannot

6 let this terminal close. We have to figure out a way to work

7 something out so that we can be a model for the rest of the

8 country and improve the air and the environment everywhere.

9 Thank you for your time.

10 Good morning, commissioners.MS. ALVARENGA: I'm Jessica

Alvarenga with P.M.S.A.11 Thomas Thomas had to step out for

12 a phone call. So I'll be speaking on his behalf.

13 First of all, congratulations, President Lee.

14 MS. SIDLEY: Introduce yourself. What's your name?

15 Jessica Alvarenga, with P.M.S.A.MS. ALVARENGA:

16 Congratulations, President Lee and Vice-President

17 Renwick.

I am here in support of the China Shipping E.I.R.18

19 Your staff has put in a lot of good work to bring the E.I.R.

20 before you today. It is important that the board approves the

21 E.I.R.

22 We have received comments challenging the conclusions

23 of the E.I.R. These comments are incorrect. Many of the

24 comments claim that zero-emissions technology is feasible.

25 This is simply not the truth. The staff of both ports have
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1 conducted an exhaustive analysis of cargo-handling equipment

2 and on-road trucks. That analysis determined that there is no

zero-emission technology that is currently feasible.3

4 Similarly, some comments call for 100 percent LNG

5 trucks serving China Shipping. This is equally infeasible.

6 The reason the two ports set up the Clean Trucks Program to

7 provide consistent standards across the San Pedro Bay was

because a terminal-based approach was infeasible.

9 It is infeasible because terminals do not control the

10 trucks that arrive at their facility. Those trucks are

dispatched by companies that the terminal likely has11 no

12 relation to. It is also infeasible because trucks need the

13 ability to move from one terminal to another seamlessly. If

14 each terminal ends up with different requirements, the flow of

cargo in the ports would break down.15

16 Finally, I would like to note that some of the

17 comments called for the shutting down of the terminal. I

would like to mark how outrageous this comment is.18 This port

19 complex, China Shipping included, has reduced emissions beyond

20 expectations. This industry reduced emissions faster than any

21 other sector and faster than the goals established in the

22 CAAP.

23 Shutting down this terminal would only move cargo to

24 other facilities, not improve — and not improve the

environment.25 But in the near term, it would cause disruption
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1 that could cost thousands of their jobs.

2 It is important to remember port-related jobs start

in the terminal with longshore labor.3 Those jobs do not end

4 there. As your economic analysis disclosed, the port benefits

5 communities throughout this region. Please certify the China

6 Shipping E.I.R. Thank you.

7 PRES. LEE: Thank you.

8 Rich?

9 MR. SIVERSON: Good morning, Honorable Board of Harbor

10 Commissioners. Congratulations, President Lee, Vice-President

Renwick, on your recent elections.11 Thank you very much.

12 MS. SIDLEY: Slow down. Slow down, because we're

13 MR. SIVERSON: Oh, sorry.

14 I would just actually — as a member of the public

15 and also a stakeholder here working inside of the port of

16 Los Angeles and port of Long Beach commend all efforts to

17 actually reduce emissions and the also pass-through grants of

the $140 million that were set aside18

19 MS. SIDLEY: We'll give you more time. She cannot

20 she's taking down everything you're saying for the record. So

21 if you could just slow down. Start with your name.

22 THE WITNESS: Oh, Richard Siverson.

23 So I would like to actually commend all of the

24 efforts that are being done on the expenditure of research and

25 development with Oleum Partners for zero emissions and
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1 emissions cargo-handling equipment that originatesnear-zero

2 in the 2017-2018 budget that Governor Jerry Brown signed. I

believe3

4 MS. SIDLEY: Slow down. I know you're doing your best.

5 She can't keep up.

6 I'm sorry;MR. SIVERSON: I'm sorry.

7 And I would actually like to highlight one of the

comments that the port did put in the recent China — and I'll

9 just throw this in context of (unintelligible) and emissions

10 being the primary topic of debate.

11 One of the comments specifically relating to N.R.D.C.

12 comment number 27 in the Port and Harbor staff's refutation of

ridiculous assertions made by this comment13 it is going to

14 IT It is important to note, however, thatgo on to say, quote,

15 the Tray-Pak and Middle Harbor terminals in these twin

16 San Pedro ports that employ substantial quantities of

17 zero-emissions equipment and that have underwent IT

(unintelligible)18

19 MS. SIDLEY: There's no way. So if you just submit what

20 you're reading, that would be very helpful, and we'll just put

it21

22 Mr. Siverson: Okay. Just to kind of end this

23 I'm sorry. I'm a fast thinker; so I apologize again.

24 But basically the claim said that they would have

25 significant efficiency gains and profit gains.
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1 But the comment and the refutation of that in the

2 Chapter 2 response to comments, again N.R.D.C. 27 goes on to

3 further say that this is not feasible and the cost expenditure

4 for the C.S. terminal would be $396 to configure everything

with zero and near-zero emissions.5

6 Thank you very much, Honorable Board of Harbor

7 Commissioners, for hearing my comment. Thank you.

8 PRES. LEE: You should do those disclaimers at the end of

9 radio ads. Very fast.

10 I will be calling up a few names.Okay. Please feel

11 free to come up. Speak in any order. Go ahead and speak as

12 soon as the speaker in front of you concludes. Please start

13 by stating your name, and please keep in mind that we do have

14 a court reporter who is taking down everything you are saying.

15 Peter Warren, Gary Herrera, Janet Gunter.

16 MR. WARREN: Peter Warren, San Pedro and Peninsula

17 Homeowners Coalition.

18 There's a lesson in the disgraceful and shameful

19 history of the China Shipping Terminal and the secret

20 agreement that Mayor Villaraigosa and Geraldine Knatz engaged

in with the China Shipping Company.21 And the lesson is for the

22 five of you, is that your oversight is important.

23 There are no whistleblowers in the port. When Gene

24 Siroka came in and the lies were revealed to us, I asked Chris

25 Cannon why for years he looked us in the face and told us
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lies .1

2 And he told me, II I had a choice. I could be a

whistleblower, or I could keep my job.3 IT

4 I say that to you not to spritzo Chris. I think

Chris is an honorable guy,5 and I understood what he was saying

6 It's that you guys are the only ones who areto me.

7 independent enough to look at what's going on here and say the

8 mitigation agreement that was signed in 2008 and certified by

9 the board was a good agreement, and the fact that pressure was

10 put on the port to secretly violate that agreement is

11 shameful.

12 I ask you to — one of the things that happened is

13 Director Siroka came in. He was in for a year, and then there

14 was great hope. He was the man in the white hat. He was the

15 man who was going to be transparent.

16 But the truth is things — things didn't turn out

17 that way. We are going backwards. Eleven years after the

certification of the 2008 E.I.R., the port contends that many18

19 of the mitigation measures then adopted are now infeasible due

20 to technological, operational, or economic reasons.

21 Yet even after the port had multiple chances to

22 supplement the record, the final S.E.I.R. fails to provide

enough information to corroborate these claims, let alone the23

24 substantial evidence required by law.

25 Ample evidence on the record demonstrates that not
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1 only are these measures feasible, but that new more protective

2 mitigations are now available. I'm going to skip particulars

3 about the AMP requirement. Why not 100 percent? You've

4 already done 99 percent. Why go to 95?

5 Yard equipment. Non-diesel yard equipment? There's

6 electric rubber-tired gantries in Long Beach. They're

7 operational. How come they're not feasible in China Shipping?

The truck thing was partially discussed. I'11 leave

9 it to the report. Trucks today --

10 Finally, the final S.E.I.R. fails not only as a

matter of law. The port's elimination of essential mitigation11

12 measures previously deemed feasible and its failure to

13 consider more stringent mitigation measures currently

14 available and feasible is illegal, an affront to the

15 communities of the South Coast Air Basin, who will continue to

16 pay with their health.

17 As the AQMD said in its letter, the final S.E.I.R.

18 weakens the Harbor Department's commitment to mitigation and

19 zero-emission technology --

20 Thank you for your time, sir.THE SECRETARY:

21 implementation and ultimately goesTHE WITNESS:

22 backwards.

23 You have a choice -- to be independent, to reject the

24 E.I.R. and order the port to negotiate a settlement. We ' ve

negotiated before.25 We can achieve something. Mr. Pettit is
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right.1 We made the wrong choice four years ago when we chose

2 to trust the new administration.

I have here a copy for each of you of the most recent3

4 letter filed by our counsel. It's shorter than the

whistleblower letter in the Trump Administration.5 There's a

6 dozen pages. Skip the 14 pages of amendments --

7 I'll take that for you, sir.THE SECRETARY:

8 I ask that you each take a copy of this andMR. WARREN:

9 look at it before you render your decision. Can we have this

10 transmitted

May it be noted that it's already on the11 THE SECRETARY:

12 record. Thank you for your time, sir.

13 Thank you.MR. WARREN.

14 Gary Herrera, I.L.W. Local 13.MR. HERRERA:

First I just want to say I'm in complete support of15

16 the supplemental environmental impact report from Gene Siroka

17 and his staff. What they've done is they’ve created an

opportunity to fix some of the problems without displacing18

19 j obs .

20 There were some previous statements that talked about

21 I? What about our future? What about our grandchildren? TT

22 Well, what about our future? What about our

23 grandchildren? What happens when there are no jobs in this

24 community? What happens when the economy falls down because

25 we decide to shut down a terminal that employs eight hundred
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1 to a thousand people on a daily basis, including the

2 management, which takes it even to a higher level? What

happens when the community falls apart because there's nowhere3

to live because we can't afford it anymore?4

5 What happens when a person like myself, who's been

6 born and raised here for 47 years — and I've seen the

7 changes. I can see across the bay now, San Pedro Bay, all the

8 way to Long Beach. That's how clean the air is. As a

9 previous statement says, we have some of the cleanest air

10 right here. We've set the standard. We've set the example.

11 He says, "99 percent. Why not 100? Go 95." Well,

12 why was 99 percent good enough to maintain and keep jobs here?

13 It seems like the only thing that people want to do

14 is get rid of jobs and make it automated. They want to shut

15 down a terminal that employees longshoremen, it employs people

in management positions, all for environmental purposes, which16

is great.17 I work down there. I want clean air.

But right now,18 I can see straight across the bay in

19 San Pedro to Long Beach based on all the improvements that the

20 port has done here in San Pedro Bay and the L.A. port.

21 So I am in complete support, is in completeI.L.W.

22 support of Gene Siroka and his staff, and I hope that you guys

23 make the right decision. When today you guys were appointed

24 this position, I said, Be very objective today when you think

25 about the community as a whole and not just people trying to
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get rid of jobs.1 Tf Thank you.

2 MS. GUNTER: Good morning. Janet Gunter, San Pedro

3 Homeowners United.

4 Over 17 years ago, I met an Austrian architect and

5 This man asked me if I had ever read theengineer.

6 environmental impact report on the China Shipping Expansion

7 Project at the Port of L.A. I had no idea what he was talking

8 about. This man had a false hope of working with the port on

9 a recreational development that he envisioned from the bridge

10 to the breakwater called the Port Mile — which, by the way,

was brilliant.11 But that's why he was looking at port plans.

12 I was completely uneducated about an E.I.R. and what

13 any of this meant. This fellow, Alfred Wimmer, was hell-bent

14 on making me read and understand this E.I.R., which was

15 completely ignoring the incredible negative environmental

impacts that would be caused from this massive cargo increase.16

17 He called my attention to the fact that the explosive

18 growth of the port during the 1980s and 1990s had ignored all

19 of the harmful environmental impacts to San Pedro, Wilmington,

20 Harbor City, and the Palos Verdes Peninsula. Every previous

21 E.I.R. had stated that the port's growth was simply taking

22 place in an industrial area and that the port had purposely

ignored any and all harmful safety, health, and visual losses23

24 stemming from that rampant industrial growth upon local

residents and its workers.25
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1 Our personal exceptions to the sad reality had

2 nothing to do with any attempt to halt the port's business

but it did have to do with a payback to our3 expansion,

community for all of the resulting negative impacts being4

5 suffered. The community losses should have been properly

mitigated.6

7 That this had this Austrian man not educated this

community on our rights and the critical importance of these

9 environmental documents documents that deliberately ignored

10 local negative impacts for decades I believe that as

unhealthy as our air quality is today, without that11

12 intervention, it would be incredibly worse today.

13 Once a number of us were convinced that we had been

14 environmentally sabotaged by the port and City of L.A., we

15 contacted a number of attorneys. All of them realizing the

16 power of the Port of L.A. and its litigating strength,

17 regardless of the egregious trespasses, refused to engage

until the Natural Resources Defense Counsel.18 I want to

vigorously thank our counsel,19 for without them,the N.R.D.C.,

20 our Harbor area's environment today would be much, much worse.

21 I will always remember being told by a port attorney

22 after the port's receipt of the N.R.D.C. lawsuit, You will

23 never win this case. I live to see the win,II but I also live

24 to see the port reach our legal settlement agreement. I would

25 like to live to see the port begin to do honest E.I.R.s,
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1 E.I.R.s that identify the truth of these impacts and honor the

2 well being of our people and its work force --

3 Thank you for your time.THE SECRETARY:

4 —‘ as a first priority.THE WITNESS: This new E.I.R.

5 continues to convince me that we still have a very, very, very

6 long way to go. Thanks.

7 PRES. LEE: Thank you.

8 Chuck Hart, Anthony Loy (phonetic), Martin Cerda.

9 MR. CERDA: Hello. Martin Cerda.

10 So you have to forgive me. I only recently started

following these issues, and when I come to these meetings, I11

12 hear about them the day of or the day before.

13 This was actually good news. I want to commend the

14 staff for coming up with these revisions. I only learned

15 about it today, and I've been trying to go to the meetings,

16 and I've been hearing this is everything but feasible, that

17 these weren't realistic expectations in the Clean Air Action

18 Plan .

19 I haven't been to all these meetings. I only started

this year, but I never seen Dave Pettit or anyone from the20

21 N.R.D.C. So I challenge them to go to more of these meetings

22 so they can see how unrealistic these expectations are.

23 I don't speak for any groups, but I am a part of a

24 couple of community-built groups that are coming together, and

25 we're studying these issues. And I think the community can
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get behind these revisions, and we would like to learn more1

2 about this so that we can bring the same groups that came out

July 11th to speak up for these revisions and against the3

4 and what they're shooting for.N.R.D.C.

5 It just doesn't make sense. Labor is suffering, and

it's not just the dockworkers and the local business owners,6

7 but truckers are speaking out against this. It's just not

realistic.

9 And, you know, like I said, I'm just learning about

it, but this kind of, like,10 overlaps the indirect source rule;

right?11 They're killing warehousing with this too.

12 I don't get to read about this stuff in the papers;

right?13 I learn about it coming here. So I don't know if

14 there's anybody I can contact so I could, like, learn more

15 about this and bring this back to my community groups, I would

16 love that. And we would love to stand behind you guys in, I

17 considering these revisions and against the N.R.D.C.guess,

Thank you.18

19 Thank you. Sir, if you could please stateTHE SECRETARY:

20 your name again for the record.

21 Martin Cerda.MR. CERDA:

22 THE SECRETARY: Thank you.

23 Good morning. My name is Chuck Hart, PresidentMR. HART:

24 of the San Pedro Peninsula Homeowners United. At my age, time

25 is short. My words will be shorter.
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1 The port's S.E.I.R. — this is an example of too

2 little too late. The community has been violated. It's time

to correct that issue.3

4 In this letter, presented by the N.R.D.C., the truth

5 will out, and the truth shall finally set the port free.

6 Please, no more delays. Let's just do the right thing. Thank

7 you.

8 THE SECRETARY: Kathleen Woodfield, David Ross, James

9 Allen.

10 Would you like to go?MS. WOODFIELD:

11 MR. ROSS: Sure .

12 Good morning, everyone. My name is David Ross, a San

13 Pedro native. First I'd like to say thank you, Mr. Siroka and

14 for revising the E.I.R.your staff, I'm in favor of it.

15 When you talk about communities, we're talking about

16 the future of the neighborhoods. Well, what I don't

17 understand with the N.R.D.C. is that they're not talking about

how they recognize, for example, wireless technology and the18

19 dangers of it in this future with 5G and radiation and how the

20 F.C.C. has not updated any provisions since the 1990s.

21 So going forward with that, when you look at what's

22 going on with China Shipping, if it were to shut down and they

23 want to reach 100 percent zero emission, what's the

24 alternative? Automation? Wireless technology? We have no

guidelines on that at all, and we're talking about shutting25
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1 down a port that's already considered one of the cleanest

2 ports in the entire country, yet we have no knowledge of

3 what's going on with wireless technology since 1996, to be

4 exact, and that scares me more.

5 My girlfriend's little sister goes to Port of

6 Los Angeles High School. She goes there every day. I work in

China Shipping myself all the time.7 I have no idea what kind

8 of radiation is emitting because we have no standards and no

9 guidelines regarding that.

10 So when we're talking about protecting the future,

11 protecting our health, are we really protecting -- are we

12 really looking at all angles? Are we really looking at every

situation here?13 Or are we just trying to go 100 percent clean

14 air and eliminate jobs and send them to Long Beach ports,

which is most likely going to happen if China Shipping shuts15

16 down.

17 So although I'm in favor of this, I do understand you

18 guys have you commissioners have your duties to fill out

19 objectively. But I hope you look at an entire situation and

20 understand that when someone comes up to you and tells you

21 that they're looking at the health and the future of this

22 community, someone right here who is from this community is

23 scared of unknown technology that we have no idea and its

24 dangers.

25 I understand how dangerous the pollution is. My dad
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died of cancer.1 I'm not saying that it's from pollution, but

2 it definitely doesn't help. But I want — I'm hoping to be

3 looking forward to the future that we look at every assessment

4 and every guidelines and reach every feasible possibility to

5 appease both sides. So thank you.

6 Good morning. My name is KathleenMS. WOODFIELD:

7 Woodfield. I'm with San Pedro Peninsula Homeowners Coalition.

8 I'd like to say that we support all the comments made

9 by our counsel, David Pettit.N.R.D.C., Also, we submitted a

10 comments letter, along with several other entities, penned by

11 N.R.D.C.

12 I think I saw I'm pretty sure that I saw within

13 the fence line of China Shipping terminal, that all areas

14 within the fence line exceed the 10 cancer cases per million,

which means that every worker that goes there is exposed to a15

16 level of cancer risk that is over and above what is stated as

significant in CEQA.17

18 Not only that, there's areas of the community as

19 well, which does not even have an economic benefit or a choice

20 to be there, that are exposed to levels of cancer risk that

21 are significant and over the threshold of CEQA.

22 Overriding considerations has been a very

misfortunate phenomenon for the community.23 It is it is

24 something that's given to the port for them to back out of

25 their obligation to mitigate significant impacts and basically
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1 get away with it.

2 It used to be I would come here and see a whole list

3 of how many areas of the environmental impact report were

4 actually being overridden when you read the statement of

5 overriding considerations. Here, it's more broad now. It

6 just says, Some environmental impacts remain significant andIf

7 unavoidable. If

But it does list on the first paragraph II Significant

9 environmental effects on air quality and meteorology,

10 greenhouse gas emissions and climate change and ground

11 transportation as defined by Public Resources Code section ...

12 are being overridden. II

13 What that means is that the port has made a decision

14 that climate change, greenhouse gases, health effects on the

15 community and on the workers are not as important as money.

16 And I think for as long as we continue to allow that to

17 happen where the leaders in our community think it's okay

to override the health of the community, the health of the18

19 planet that we will never really be able to get where we

20 need to go as the human race.

21 We are at a time when climate change is extremely

22 critical, and nobody should be making policy --

23 THE SECRETARY: Thank you for your time.

24 MS. WOODFIELD: -- that makes it worse when they can make

25 decisions to make it better. Thank you.

44
SNYDER HEATHCOTE, INC. (213) 388-2151



1 MR. ALLEN: James Preston Allen.

2 I'm not representing the neighborhood council, not

3 representing anybody, but a concerned citizen who had a bit of

4 a hand in why we're all here today.

5 I would like to thank Gene, actually, for initiating

6 the transparency of actually going back and reviewing things

7 after I asked an impertinent question at a meeting with

Mr. Cannon, who then had to go do an audit, in which case is

9 why we're all here now, is that they went back and they

10 realized that something hadn't been done.

11 I think it's the N.R.D.C.Now, and the community's

12 position that we don't want to see that kind of

13 unaccountability, lack of transparency happen again, and I

14 think you would all agree that you have a fiduciary

15 responsibility to make sure that when there is a legal

16 settlement, that you agree and abide by that legal settlement.

17 it appears as though some of the supplemental isNow,

trying to avoid what that legal settlement was, and the18

19 litigant is giving you guys a problem, putting you in a very

20 difficult place you know, rock and a hard place; right?

21 The union's saying, You're going to get rid of our jobs.

22 And, actually, back when China Shipping was done

23 originally, the agreement was done, it was the agreement

24 between the port, the community, and labor that a green

25 environment does not get rid of blue jobs.
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1 And the union my union brothers and sisters who

2 are here today need to understand that that IF ten cancer

victims in the million3 11 thing — that's not just about China

Shipping terminal.4 It's about everyplace you guys worked out

5 in the harbor. That is a risk, a health risk, for every

6 worker in the harbor.

7 And just the other day when I was over at the new

8 Zero-Emission Day celebration with the mayor, we saw that

9 there are zero-emission top-handlers run by union workers,

10 repaired by union workers. So zero-emission equipment is

here. It's being tested.11 And those top-handlers are American

12 made.

13 We have the technology to go zero-emission, and the

14 commitment of the port is that on-dock emissions will be zero

15 by in ten years.

16 Right, Gene?

17 DIR. SIROKA: 2030.

18 MR. ALLEN: 2030. Okay.

19 So what we do know is that the emissions report that

20 Mr. Cannon gave us the other day shows that greenhouse gases,

just from '17 — the years 2017 to 201821 - have gone up 3 to 7

22 percent

23 Thank you for your time, sir.THE SECRETARY:

24 MR. ALLEN: — mostly due to the throughput - the increase

in throughput that Gene has been so effective at creating the25
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competitiveness of this harbor.1

2 There is middle ground here. I recommend you go back

3 to the negotiating table with the N.R.D.C. and the community

4 and include the unions in that discussion so that they

5 understand what's at stake. Thank you.

6 Thank you. That concludes public comment.PRES. LEE:

7 Are there any comments from the commissioners that

you would like to pose to staff?

9 After all the comment is received, Environmental

10 Management will incorporate all the comments and documents and

11 present responses to what we've heard.

12 So if I may, I wanted to make oneMR. CANNON:

13 clarification on the slide where I indicated that the Berths

14 97 to 109 terminal is operated by a joint venture between

COSCO/China Shipping, YangMing15 I said SSA Marine. That was

a mistake.16 It's Ports America. So they're the entity that

17 operates.

Also, just a couple of comments, if I may, just to18

19 kind of address some of the things that have been said.

20 With regard to the comment about Long Beach running

21 zero-emission cranes, not all terminals are configured the

22 same, and the analysis that we did indicates that the

configuration of the terminal is an important factor for23

24 determining whether or not rubber-tired gantry cranes can be

electric or not.25
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We identified that the ones that operate in the1

2 surcharge area, which is in the back portion of the terminal,

could be electric and will be required to be.3 But in the

4 front area, because of the configuration of the terminal, they

have to be hybrid.5 Those hybrid units are 70 to 80 percent

6 cleaner than a standard rubber-tired gantry crane. But just

7 note that not all terminals are configured the same and not

8 all of them can run electric equipment.

9 And also to the point about Long Beach, remember that

10 there is an electric crane operating in Long Beach, but it1s

an automated terminal,11 and so there are some factors to

12 consider there as well.

13 The other things that were mentioned about N02

14 emissions from AQMD, noting that the numbers were very high,

in fact, the N02, the NOx emissions at this terminal are very15

similar to NOx emissions that have occurred throughout -- at16

various terminals at the port.17 It's not any different.

And in fact, as we've reported recently, NOx18

19 emissions at the port continue to go down. Notwithstanding

20 the great work of our team and Gene to increase throughput at

21 the port, NOx emissions actually have continued to go down,

22 and so we're very proud of that effort.

23 The other efforts, greenhouse gas and so forth —

24 we're looking forward to establishing a program with a fund in

25 order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions here at the port. We
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think that's a very important thing,1 and that's something

2 that's going to be required of this applicant tenant in order

to contribute to that.3 That's the $2 million that I referred

4 to.

5 I'll stop there. Those are just some of the quick

highlights,6 and I'll respond to any of your questions.

7 COMM. RENWICK: Thank you, Chris. A couple of questions.

First of all, this is sort of a so the lines on

9 that chart that showed the terminal itself was at greater than

10 10 per million cancer risk is that only for people who are

living on the terminal, or is that also inclusive for11

12 employees? I know how it's calculated, it's different.

13 MR. CANNON: Can someone put that back up?

14 MS. SIDLEY: Well you can answer even

15 So, anyway, I just wanted to be clear that IMR. CANNON:

16 - your questioncan see

17 COMM. RENWICK: It's not that slide. It's the picture

slide.18

19 I just wanted it to be clear that contour --MR. CANNON:

it's 10 in a million.20 It's a health risk that's 10 in a

21 million over an exposure period of 30 years for residential

22 and different contours for

23 Here you can see we have occupational, we have

24 residential, and we have sensitive receptors. And they're all

different.25 The occupational risk is 26. The residential is
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The differences there are based on exposure periods and1 25.

2 the types of not only the duration of exposure, but the type

3 of exposure that occurs, depending upon the activity that

you're doing.4

5 COMM. RENWICK: Understood.

6 So what's shown here is residential healthMR. CANNON:

risk.7 And so that's

8 But there's no one who lives on thatCOMM. RENWICK:

9 terminal.

10 There is no one who lives in the terminal.MR. CANNON:

The red is 100 in a million, but that's a residential health11

12 risk, and there is nobody that lives there.

13 COMM. RENWICK: Okay. And then a couple of other

14 questions. Gene said that this would be the cleanest

15 conventional terminal — in the bay? In California? In the

16 country? Can you explain that.

17 The reason it's the cleanest and would be theMR. CANNON:

cleanest is because it will implement the cleanest available18

19 technology, in particular the item that I described to you

which requires that they implement whatever the cleanest20

21 technology is at the time it is available.

22 So any time they make any purchase in a year, they

23 have to tell us that it will be the cleanest and confirm that

24 it would be. And they also will make, by 2030, a full zero

25 emissions -- we hope to meet the goal for the CAAP to be full
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1 zero emissions.

2 So the combination of the fact that this equipment is

3 the cleanest available at the time that we're doing it,

combined with the fact that they have to purchase the cleanest4

5 available anytime they purchase something, even if it goes

6 beyond what's required in mitigation measures, yes, this would

7 be the cleanest terminal in the bay.

8 COMM. RENWICK: And the only terminals that would be

9 cleaner would be the automated terminals; correct?

10 That is correct.MR. CANNON:

11 COMM. RENWICK: Okay. And then if the N.R.D.C. does get

12 sort of what they said they wanted, which is to shut down the

terminal, where will those boxes go?13

14 We understand that the COSCO boxes wouldMR. CANNON:

likely go to L.B.C.T.,15 which is the automated terminal in

16 Long Beach.

17 COMM. RENWICK: So they would go to an automated terminal.

That would presumably mean the loss of jobs.18

19 And then do they also — does China Shipping also

20 control another terminal in Long Beach that the boxes might

21 flow to?

22 MR. CANNON: It's P.C.T.

23 Is that terminal as clean as this terminalCOMM. RENWICK:

24 will be?

25 There is the terminals that exist hereMR. CANNON:
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1 especially ones that have undergone environmental review like

2 this one as Gene says, are the cleanest available because

3 they have to implement the cleanest technology based on

4 mitigation-measure requirements. P.C.T. does not have that

5 requirement.

6 So if we were to reject this and we had toCOMM. RENWICK:

7 shut down the terminal, the boxes would either go to a place

8 that is automated and therefore less jobs, or else a place

9 that would be more polluting.

10 That is correct.MR. CANNON:

11 Thank you.COMM. RENWICK:

12 Commissioner Middleton.PRES. LEE:

13 COMM. MIDDLETON: Before specific comments about the

14 E.I.R. and an overall impression, I just want to say something

15 by way of opening, particularly to the folks who are in

16 opposition to certification of the E.I.R., the supplemental

17 and that is it always helps to know what experiencesE.I.R.,

18 someone is bringing to the table.

19 And I just want to say that for the 40 years I was an

20 attorney in this area, I specialized in representing shipyard

21 and longshore workers and represented 600 different

22 individuals who had asbestos disease. I've read thousands of

23 reports on what happens to your lungs, your heart, and all

2 4 other parts of your body from occupational disease, and it is

25 not a pretty picture.
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1 So although folks have made reference to it in

2 passing, let me say that the reason this is so vitally

important to me -3 because as concerned as I am about the air

in the community and the people that live here,4 I will tell

you it is the men and woman who work in these terminals who5

6 are the most affected. They're the ones who breathe those

7 tailpipe emissions. They're the ones that deserve our

protection most of all.

9 And that's why I read this so carefully to see if

10 we were going to be making it better or making it worse. So

this is personal for all of us who live here, because11

12 everybody is touched in some way by what's happening in this

13 major industry.

14 Now, having said that, I want to thank all the

15 speakers once again. Restores my faith in democracy that

16 people listen, read, and take the time to come out and try to

17 make their communities better, and that's what all of you did.

I want to especially thank Mr. Siroka and the staff.18

19 I thought his remarks were dead on the money. We are here to

20 work out solutions. We are solution-oriented.

21 I'm going to point out what I think has happened

22 because of course I'm a newcomer to this. This litigation has

23 been around for 18 years. I've been here seven or eight

24 months.

25 But I did read everything in here, and I do want to;
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1 particularly commend Mr. Siroka for starting us off saying,

2 We're going to solve this problem. We're going to make it

3 better. II

4 It's a step at a time. The first step today is a big

5 one — approve the supplemental E.I.R. Take us to the next

6 step.

7 Secondly, I want to thank Chris and his staff. This

was an amazing job.8 I jokingly told Chris I don't know if I'm

9 the last of that generation of women, but I'm one of those

10 generation of women that always thought I can't understand

science and technology.11 You know, I'm a history and other

12 kind of person; right?

13 I understood I didn't understand all of this, but

14 I understood a lot of it, and it's because of the way staff

15 put it together and the assistance they gave us in their

presentations.16 So staff is to be commended for an outstanding

job.17 All too often when we sit here because we do have

this oversight role18 we look at what isn't happening. This

19 is all great. It was really, really good.

20 I want to say a couple of things I didn't hear said

21 yet, and that is what does "feasible" really mean? It means

22 II Capable of successful accomplishment, taking into account

23 economic, environmental, social, and technical factors. But

24 it's based on one other thing. It's based on practicality.

25 And I'm reminded of another instance in my personal
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history, and it involves my buddy Norman Tuck.1 And that is

2 one of the most dangerous operations on the waterfront is

unloading pieces of steel, pipe, I-beams, and so on.3

4 Norman was unfortunate enough to suffer a disastrous

injury in 19845 and many people did, many longshoremen —

when pipe, which6 you know, imagine these very, very long

7 pieces — circular pieces, some 12 inches in diameter that are

8 bound by cable. The cables come loose. The pipe is stowed.

9 It falls. It fall onto people.

10 Norman was injured, and in the course of representing

him and unfortunately a dozen other people that had11

12 devastating injuries from pipe, I asked the loaders of the

13 steel, if you will I asked the supervisors, II What can you

14 do to avoid the kind of accidents that people have been

15 having? If

16 And they said, "It's very simple. You unload the

17 pipe one piece at a time. You don't bundle it. You take out

one piece at a time,18 and then you don't have any problem with

19 cables sliding. You don't have any problem with loads

shifting.20 You just clear the hold and lift out one piece at a

21 time . IT

22 And I said, II And why don't you do it that way?"Hmm. -

23 And the answer was II Because it would take four weeks

24 to unload one ship that we currently do in three days. It is

not practical.25 IT
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1 So what we need to look at is what does this mean in

2 the context of what we're doing? And I'm sorry, but I'm not

going to sit here and accept anything that says,3 II Oh, you're

putting money above health.4 II Money is a commodity we all live

5 Tell somebody who's homeless that money doesn't matteron.

6 and that it doesn't make any difference that they don't have

7 any money for rent or food.

Yes, the port needs to be profitable if we're going

9 to do everything we have to do, but this is by no means greed.

This is practicality, and here's where I think, you know, the10

discrepancy is in what people are saying, because I think11

12 everybody is well-intentioned.

13 What the discrepancy is is the first E.I.R. was in

14 2008. I would describe it as aspirational. What was said in

15 that E.I.R. is what we hoped would happen with machines.

16 Now, when people say things like II I know of a

17 machine" somewhere "that's all electric, and it could be used

here," well, it's like when you talk about unemployment and18

19 II You know what? If I was unemployed, I wouldn't letyou say,

20 my family go hungry. I'd find a job somehow. II

21 Yeah, that can work for one person. It can't work

22 for an entire class of people that are unskilled,

23 disadvantaged, or whatever. It works for one person, and

24 likewise with all this new technology. Because there is one

25 piece of equipment somewhere doesn't mean dozens can be
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1 ordered to run a very complex terminal.

2 I feel so fortunate to be a member of this boardNow,

3 and be educated by the staff at the Harbor Department, because

4 they really are knowledgeable. One of the reports that we had

5 last week was an overview of technology demonstration

projects.6

7 Now, I tried to add the numbers, and I know I

8 probably had things in the wrong category and so on, but I

9 will say there probably are two, three, four hundred different

10 machines being tested at different terminals — twenty RNG

11 yard tractors, two electric top-handlers, three electric

12 heavy-duty fork forklifts.

13 But the problem is they're prototypes. Because there

14 one machine somewhere that is being used in a demonstrationis

15 project doesn't mean it can run a whole terminal, and that's

16 what's wrong.

17 And, I mean, I'm glad that we are here talking about

conventional equipment, which to me means18 and, again, we're

19 limited by this language -- "manned" equipment. Let us simply

20 driven by a human being I! as opposed to a computer,say,

21 because there is no such word as "woman-ed" equipment; right?

22 But let's say we want people driving this equipment — right?

23 -- and that's what we're talking about.

24 And when we talk about that, we have to talk about

the interface between this very unique equipment and human25
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1 operators and how it's going to work. To shift gears, we know

2 when we talk about automation and what's happening at Tray-Pak

3 and Middle Harbor, that one of the big problems is it doesn't

4 work like it's supposed to and that there are glitches in the

5 software.

6 And just because somebody designs it and says, This

7 is what we're going to do, it doesn't mean it's going to

happen. It doesn't mean it's going to run the terminal.

9 And there are backlogs. I mean, we know that one of

10 the problems we're facing with emissions is the time that

11 these vehicles are stalled because of waiting times and that

12 that's additional emissions, and we have to address that,

13 which we're going to with other items on the agenda today.

14 But I just think when I look at all of this that we

15 are absolutely moving in the right direction, and I want us to

continue moving in the right direction.16

17 I think what this E.I.R does and the reason INow,

support it is because it takes us the next step.18 It seems to

19 me like the reason we got into trouble, if you will, with the

20 last E.I.R. is because we set a lot of goals that we really

21 couldn't meet. I don't think we should do the same thing

22 I don't think we should say there are machines outagain.

23 there that have not been tested.

24 And I'm sorry, but if somebody can put in a report

25 that there's one machine that is developed somewhere, that
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isn't the answer to running this terminal.1

2 So I believe our board should approve this. We

3 should move to the next step. I am very encouraged by the

4 people that said they'd like to see a negotiated settlement.

5 I would hope that once this E.I.R. is approved, we will go to

6 the next step, because I'm mindful of the fact that we need to

7 get China Shipping on board.

8 And I hope that somewhere, somebody in their

9 office if there's nobody in the audience today — will

10 listen to this video and will understand they've got to step

11 up and they've got to come to the table and meet these

12 mitigation measures, that there are forces that want them to

13 be shut down.

14 And I've got to believe it wouldn't be just here in

15 San Pedro in the Port of L.A., it would be in Long Beach as

16 well. Because I do believe that climate change is the issue

17 of our generation. I do believe it has to be solved in the

18 next ten years, and I think it's going to follow these

19 shippers and terminals wherever they go. So step up to the

20 plate now and be part of the solution and continue doing

21 business here and continue making money here.

22 With all due respect to the speaker who said he

23 thinks the commissioners have to step up, I rejectsorry.

24 that. I'm perfectly happy to have staff negotiate the

25 settlement. They know this. They're going to move forward.
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1 That's what we want to do. I hope our fellow — my fellow

2 commissioners approve this and we can keep moving. We are

going to make this the cleanest, most conventional terminal.3

4 And I certainly do not want for a moment this record

5 this hearing to end without noting how much the port has

6 already done. We're here to talk about China Shipping, but if

7 you look at the other reports we've had on overall port

8 emissions, we are doing a fabulous job. Could we do better?

9 Are there still too many people that are getting sick?Yes .

10 Are we going to continue?Yes . Absolutely. So let's do it.

11 May I just add also you've mentioned theMR. CANNON:

12 fact and thank you for doing so that the zero-emissions

13 equipment is still under development and not feasible.

14 But to the point Gene made about being the cleanest

15 available terminal, there is no terminal that's going to

16 replace all of its equipment with clean, new technology like

17 this one, and so this will indeed be very, very clean.

18 Thank you, Chris.PRES. LEE: Thank you, Commissioner

19 Middleton. Any other comments from the commissioners?

20 COMM. PIROZZI: I did.

21 just wanted to ask maybe one or twoI wanted

22 questions and make a couple of closing comments.

23 In order to get to zero emissions by 2030, I guess,

24 it' s what -- how do we bridge the gap between where we are

25 today, what's in the final environmental impact report, the
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1 language of IfWhen a new lease is signed, II you know, If we'll do If

2 certain things and the plan and then what is - and how does

that gap get closed with what we put in our recent CAAP3

4 approval?

5 MR. CANNON: So we have talked to the terminals, and we

6 will have continued discussions with the COSCO folks. When

7 they purchase equipment, the idea is for them to do it with an

eye toward moving towards zero emissions in 2030.

9 And so to the extent that equipment can be swapped

10 out for zero-emissions technology as the time comes; retrofit,

perhaps, with electric motors; or otherwise modified and11

12 evolved into equipment that can meet that 2030 goal, that's

13 something we want to work with them on. And that's part of

14 what that lease requirement is, for them to work with us, to

15 try and evolve and move toward that.

16 I will say this, that not only does COSCO feel this

17 - and they've said this to us but, really, all of ourway

terminals have taken that zero emissions in 2030 requirement18

19 very seriously. They consider it something that they want to

20 do, and they've talked to us about how they can accomplish

21 that and, as you say, bridge the gap. And so that's something

22 that they're all trying to work with, and we'll continue to

23 work with them on doing that.

2 4 Okay.COMM. PIROZZI: I also wanted to just make some

25 comments. You know, Commissioner Middleton said a lot of
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things I was going to talk to, but1

2 And, you know, when you look at the reports of how

we've cleaned the air and other elements we've done,3 you know,

this is a marathon,4 it's not a sprint. And, you know, when I

5 look at the number of mitigation measures that were completed,

6 it's about 81 percent. You know, it's always that last 10 to

20 that's the hardest.7

I do think and know when this came up and when Gene

9 brought it up to us and got it out to the community, there was

10 a lot of accountability to, you know, bring back some trust

and work through this process.11 So I know it's taken a few

12 years here, but I believe the report is pretty sound on what

13 we need to do going forward. But we're at the crossroads to

14 make right for what was not implemented correctly.

15 Also, I'm really glad that we brought up the jobs in

16 this discussion. You know, we just went through a long

17 discussion of another terminal when we were questioning social

economics and jobs and what were the impacts.18 And, you know,

19 eight hundred jobs is a lot — eight hundred to a thousand.

20 And just saying we're going to close down a terminal,

21 for me it is personal in many ways. Family and friends down

22 there working. The community relies on it. The community

23 relies on also not just the jobs, but the support of the port

24 for many different things. So I do believe what's in the

25 supplemental E.I.R. is going to help us get to where we need
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1 to be.

2 And I do believe we should not just look to win on

this issue by shutting down a terminal and then move cargo to3

4 an automated terminal when it is not clean.

5 So, again, when we talk about negotiating, we should

6 be negotiating to work together, as was stated. We should not

7 be handicapping the future. We could go down a path that

8 says, "Hey, we're going »! !l We want to win. So shut the

9 terminal down. T? Now we handicap ourselves on the future and

10 getting this right.

11 We have a long way to go. We've come a long way. I

12 mean, I think some of the I.L.W. members here talked about

13 looking across the bay. I don't know about many of you, but

14 growing up here, I couldn't even see the Hollywood sign and I

15 couldn't see the San Bernardino mountains.

16 And I used to go to Cal Poly Pomona, and about five

17 days a year, I could see the mountains that I didn't know were

My son is there today and says,18 there. Dad, what are you

19 talking about? I see the mountains all the time. If So we've

20 made a lot of progress, and we have to take a step back and

21 figure out how do we get to that next level of working

22 together.

23 And it's not just about winning a settlement or

24 whatever it is. We have to win for the future of our

community, our kids, grandkids -- everything else -25 and the
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future of our jobs in the harbor area and the collective1

2 Southern California. This is a big deal, and it's never going

3 We're going to have to continue.to stop.

4 And when we talk about new technology, technology

insertion is hard.5 I live it every day with what I do, and it

is hard,6 and I've seen the effort by this port.

7 And I appreciate the community members that have been

holding the port's feet to the fire over the last ten, fifteen

9 I think we've all gotten smarter on it, collectively,years.

10 because now we understand the impact's not just to our health

but to jobs. And not just the jobs that can be and will be11

12 created off green technology; right?

13 When we talk about the future jobs for our kids on

14 the waterfront, it's technology-based in some areas; right?

This is that technology15 software, automated control of

16 software and programming of things; how to fix, you know,

zero-emission cargo-handling equipment and the like.17 It's a

new future for our jobs.18

19 So to me, this is a huge step forward. It may not

satisfy everybody, but I tell you what.20 It's going to be a

21 lot better than where we've been, because I think we leaned to

22 too far forward in some of this technology we thought would be

available already that's not.23

24 And I do think that language is key. Feasible If

25 versus "available" is very important. Just because something
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is available does not mean it will work.1 That's why we get to

2 this conversation on what's available versus what's feasible.

3 So we have a long way to go, but I think this is a

huge first step to fix some of the ills of the past and make4

5 the future brighter. Thank you.

6 Just like to comment. I'm notCOMM. MORENO-LINARES:

going to repeat what my colleagues said.7 I agree, support 100

8 percent what they commented on.

9 When we see that something needs to be fixed, that

10 it's wrong, that it can be improved, I think we have a duty as

a board to support that. I think we have an obligation as a11

12 And if in different times we made agreements thatstaff.

13 today don't make sense and we have ways of evaluating it and

14 making it better, we should do that. And I think we should

continue working forward to make it better.15

16 So for those reasons, I support this, and I think

it's the right move.17 Thank you for having expressed it so

eloquently.18

19 PRES. LEE: Thank you all so much for your comments.

20 Vice-President Renwick.

21 I just wanted to thank everyone,COMM. RENWICK: Yeah.

22 and very eloquently spoken, all of you guys.

23 it's -- you know, when I came on to the port,For me,

24 the board, one of our goals was to clean up past errors. And

how this all happened is not good, but what we've tried to do25
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is fix those past errors.1

2 It seems to me this S.E.I.R. is trying to find a

3 balance between protecting and creating jobs and also cleaning

4 the air. And as a result, as in most cases, if we do our jobs

right, we're going to sort of make everyone a little bit5

6 So I think this is striking the right balance, and Iangry.

7 congratulate staff for all of the work they've done on it. So

thank you.

9 PRES. LEE: Thank you all for your comments. I just - as

10 a procedural matter, do you feel like Environmental Management

Division needs to go back and put together comments,11 or we're

12 ready to proceed based on the comments and sentiment —

13 We're fine.MR. CANNON:

14 PRES. LEE: Thank you. And I appreciate all of the work

15 that your team and division has done on this to find a

16 solution that does a whole lot where nothing would have

17 otherwise been done and to bring us a lot forward, as you

said.18 I believe our environmental concerns are both aI mean,

19 marathon and a sprint.

20 When we talk about the next ten years being critical

21 for what we do for sustainability for our world, when we talk

22 about having 1 billion climate-change refugees across the

23 world, and I believe that there is nobody out there who is

24 doing as much as we are in the port space.

25 So I'm proud of this work that has been done. It has
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1 been brought forward to us many, many times over the last few

2 We've had a lot of opportunity to study and learn ayears.

3 lot about CEQA as well.

4 So based on the comments made by my fellow

5 I believe that we are ready for a motion tocommissioners,

6 approve staff's recommendation.

7 COMM. MIDDLETON: Madam President, can we have one motion

8 that encompasses all four recommendations that are on the

9 board?

10 PRES. LEE: Yes .

11 And do you need them each read into theCOMM. MIDDLETON:

12 record, or can we simply say, IfMove to accept the

13 recommendations"?

14 PRES. LEE: Exactly.

15 COMM. MIDDLETON: Okay. I would do that.

16 Move to accept the four recommendations of staff.

17 COMM. RENWICK: I second.

18 We have a motion and second.PRES. LEE: All those in

19 favor?

20 COMM. MIDDLETON: Aye.

21 COMM. RENWICK: Aye .

22 COMM. MORENO-LINARES: Aye.

23 COMM. PIROZZI: Aye.

24 PRES. LEE: Any opposed?

25 Any abstentions?
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1 That motion carries. Thank you.

2 Excellent work, Chris.

3 We don't need a roll call vote?COMM. RENWICK:

4 Not on this. No, you do not. Thank you.MS. SIDLEY:

5 (Proceedings were held off the record in the matter

6 of Item Number 3.)

7 MS. SIDLEY: Could I stop you for a moment, Mr. Kaneshiro.

Before people leave who are here on China Shipping,

9 if you could just wait one minute. I just want to point out

10 that the board letter actually has twelve recommendations, not

just four.11 So I just want to make sure that we are fully

12 consistent.

13 So if I could ask the commissioner, Commissioner

14 Middleton, to amend her motion to adopt all twelve that are in

15 the board letter, and then I just want to make sure that those

16 who are leaving understand that we are not piecemealing this.

17 We are actually adopting all twelve. So if we could just do

18 that, and then we can go to the next one.

19 So Commissioner Middleton, if you will, please.

20 I would amend the motion that I made toCOMM. MIDDLETON:

21 adopt all the recommendations that are in the board letter

22 motion to approve.

23 I second.COMM. PIROZZI:

24 All those in favor?PRES. LEE:

25 COMM. MIDDLETON: Aye
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1 COMM. RENWICK: Aye.

2 COMM. MORENO-LINARES: Aye.

3 COMM. PIROZZI: Aye.

4 PRES. LEE: Any opposed?

5 Any abstentions?

6 Thank you for clarifying.

7 MS. SIDLEY: Thank you. And so, for the record, all

8 twelve that are written in the board letter have now been

9 adopted. Thank you.

10 (Whereupon proceedings in the matter of item

11 number 2 were concluded at 11:48 P.M.)
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